
 

Rotherhithe Community Council 
 

Please note venue  
A community safety surgery will be held at 6.30pm prior to the meeting, come along and 

speak to the community safety wardens and safer neighbourhood teams  
 

Monday 8 November 2010 
7.00 pm 

The Norwegian Church in London, 1 St.Olav's Square, London SE16 7JB 
 

Membership 
 

 

Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair) 
Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor David Hubber 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Catherine McDonald 
Councillor Wilma Nelson (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Paul Noblet 
Councillor Lisa Rajan 
Councillor Michael Situ 
 

 

 
 
Members of the committee are summoned to attend this meeting 
Annie Shepperd 
Chief Executive 
Date: 29 October 2010 
 

 
 

 

Order of Business 
 

 
Item 
No. 

Title Time 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 

 The Chair to advise whether they have agreed to any item of urgent 
business being admitted to the agenda. 
 

 

Open Agenda



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 

 Members are asked to declare any interest or dispensation and the nature 
of that interest or dispensation which they may have in any of the items 
under consideration at this meeting. 
 

 

5. MINUTES (Pages 4 - 9) 
 

 

 To confirm as a correct record the minutes of the meeting held on 7 
October 2010. 
 

 

6. MATTERS RAISED AT PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 10 - 13) 
 

 

 • Pathway at Surrey Docks Water Sports Centre – update  
 
• Report back on workshops – Albion Street (attached) 
 
 
 

 

 MAIN BUSINESS 
 

 

7. DEPUTATIONS /PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

7.10 

 The chair to advise on any deputations or petitions received. 
 

 

8. CHAIRS ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNITY PRESENTATIONS  
 

7.15 

9. THAMES WATER CONSULTATION EVENTS  
 

7.20 

 BREAK 
 

7.50 

 Opportunity for residents to speak to Councillors and Officers. 
 

 

10. FAIRER FUTURE FOR ALL IN SOUTHWARK  
 

8.00 

 A cabinet member to brief on the budget consultation process. 
 

 

11. COMMUNITY COUNCILS HIGHWAYS AND LIGHTING CAPITAL 
INVESTMENT 2010-11 (Pages 14 - 24) 

 

8.40 



 
 
 
 

Item No. Title Time 
 
 

 Executive Function 
 
As part of the approved Highways capital investment programme for 2010 
-2011 each Community Council will receive £100,000 for highways 
surface improvements and £75,000 for Lighting improvements of their 
choice. 
 
The recommendation is to agree the works to be funded from the 
proposed schemes in the Rotherhithe community council area as set out 
in report. 
 
 

 

12. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME (Page 25) 
 

8.55 

13. COMMUNITY COUNCIL FUND DECISIONS  
 

9.00 

 Executive Function 
 
Community Council Fund decisions – allocation of underspend (report to 
follow)  
 
 

 

14. EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC  
 

 

 That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of 
business on the grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt 
information as defined in paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information 
Procedure rules of the Constitution. 
 
 

 

15. LEA SCHOOL GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS  
 

9.10 

 Executive Function 
 
Closed Agenda – LEA School governor appointments  
 
 

 

 DATE OF DESPATCH: 29 OCTOBER 2010 
 

 

 
Date: 29 October 2010 
 



  
INFORMATION FOR MEMBERS OF THE PUBLIC 

 
CONTACT: Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Tel: 020 7525 
7234 or email: beverley.olamijulo@southwark.gov.uk  
Website: www.southwark.gov.uk 

 
ACCESS TO INFORMATION 

On request, agendas and reports will be supplied to members of the 
public, except if they contain confidential or exempted information. 

 

ACCESSIBLE MEETINGS  

The council is committed to making its meetings accessible.  For 
further details on building access, translation and interpreting services, 
the provision of signers and other access requirements, please contact 
the Constitutional Officer. 

Disabled members of the public, who wish to attend community council 
meetings and require transport assistance in order to attend, are 
requested to contact the Constitutional Officer. The Constitutional 
Officer will try to arrange transport to and from the meeting. There will 
be no charge to the person requiring transport. Please note that it is 
necessary to contact us as far in advance as possible, and at least 
three working days before the meeting.  

 

BABYSITTING/CARERS’ ALLOWANCES 

If you are a resident of the borough and have paid someone to look 
after your children or an elderly or disabled dependant, so that you can 
attend this meeting, you may claim an allowance from the council.  
Please collect a claim form from the Constitutional Officer at the 
meeting.  

 
DEPUTATIONS 
Deputations provide the opportunity for a group of people who are 
resident or working in the borough to make a formal representation of 
their views at the meeting. Deputations have to be regarding an issue 
within the direct responsibility of the Council. For further information on 
deputations, please contact the Constitutional Officer.  
 
 

For a large print copy of this pack, 
please telephone 020 7525 7234.  
 
 

 

Agenda Annex
1



Rotherhithe Community Council

Language Needs
If you would like information on the Community Councils translated into your
language please telephone 020 7525 7234 or visit the officers at 160 Tooley
Street, London SE1 2TZ

Spanish:

Necesidades de Idioma
Si usted desea información sobre los Municipios de la Comunidad traducida a
su idioma por favor llame al 020 7525 7234 o visite a los oficiales de 160 Tooley
Street, Londres SE1 2TZ

Arabic:

020 7525 7234Tooley Street 160
LondonSE1 2TZ

Portuguese:

Necessidades de Linguagem
Se você gostaria de informação sobre Community Councils (Concelhos
Comunitários) traduzida para sua língua, por favor, telefone para 020 7525 7234
ou visite os oficiais em 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

French:

Besoins de Langue
Si vous désirez obtenir des renseignements sur les Community Councils traduits
dans votre langue, veuillez appeler le 020 7525 7234 ou allez voir nos agents à
160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Polish:

adresem 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

2



Cantonese:

020 7525 7234 160

Tooley Street, London SE1 2TZ

Turkish:

Twi:

Kasaa ohohia,
se wopese wo hu nsem fa Community Councils ho a, sesa saakasa yie ko wo
kuro kasa mu. wo be tumi afre saa ahoma torofo yie 020 7525 7234 anase ko sra
inpanyinfo wo 160 Tooley Street, London SE1 2Tz.

3



1 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Thursday 7 October 2010 
 

 
 

ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
 
MINUTES of the Rotherhithe Community Council held on Thursday 7 October 2010 at 
7.00 pm at Finnish Church in London, 33 Albion Street, London SE16 7HZ  
 
 
PRESENT: Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair) 

Councillor Wilma Nelson (Vice-Chair) 
Councillor Columba Blango 
Councillor David Hubber 
Councillor Richard Livingstone 
Councillor Catherine McDonald 
Councillor Paul Noblet 
Councillor Lisa Rajan 
Councillor Michael Situ 
 

 
 

1. INTRODUCTION AND WELCOME  
 

 The chair welcomed members of the public, councillors and officers to the community 
council meeting. 
 
 

2. APOLOGIES  
 

 There were no apologies for absence. 
 
Councillors Lisa Rajan and Paul Noblet gave their apologies for lateness. 
 

3. DISCLOSURE OF MEMBERS' INTERESTS AND DISPENSATIONS  
 

 None were disclosed. 
 

4. ITEMS OF BUSINESS THAT THE CHAIR DEEMS URGENT  
 

 There were no deputations or petitions. 
 

5. MINUTES  
 

Open Agenda Agenda Item 5
4



2 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Thursday 7 October 2010 
 

 The Minutes of the Rotherhithe Community Council held on Monday 23 June 2010 were 
approved as a correct record of the meeting and signed by the Chair.  
 
 

6. MATTERS RAISED AT PREVIOUS MEETING  
 

 Pathway at Surrey Docks Water Sports Centre: 
 
Barry Mason (Southwark Cyclists) referred to item 6 of the minutes (23 June 2010) 
demanded that the right of way be opened without any further delay as this matter has 
dragged on long enough.  
 
Members endorsed the comments of Barry Mason.  Cllr Richard Livingstone agreed to 
speak to the relevant cabinet member to contact Fusion. 
 
 

7. DEPUTATIONS/PETITIONS (IF ANY)  
 

 There were none. 
 

8. CHAIR'S ANNOUNCEMENTS AND COMMUNITY PRESENTATIONS  
 

 Docklands Settlement 
 
Representatives from Docklands Settlement were present to outline what the project does.  
It is a charity organisation which is situated in Rotherhithe.  The project is looking to 
identify funds to redevelop the site and update the facilities at the centre in order to make it 
sustainable for the future.  It has served the local community for over 100 years and 
providing youth and child provision as well as job opportunities in the area. 
 
It also works closely with local councillors and Southwark officers in order to run the 
project effectively.  The architect present made reference to the new build – offering 
private and shared ownership, brand new sport facilities, 5 aside pitches.  Some residents 
expressed concern about the number of properties being built and problems with parking 
which is already difficult situation at the moment.  The response given by one of the 
representatives was that there would be some off street car parking.  All matters regarding 
the number of housing units and parking would be determined at the full planning 
committee stage within the Council. 
 
Changing Livesey 
 
The Community Project Manager was present to talk about the training opportunities 
available for local residents in Livesey ward.  The outreach organisation in conjunction 
with other local agencies mainly helps people back into employment. 
 
Street Leaders 
 
Street Leader Co-ordinator, Dave Taylor was present to talk about the Street Leaders 

5



3 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Thursday 7 October 2010 
 

scheme and how residents could get involved. The Street Leaders programme is an active 
citizen scheme consisting of local volunteers focusing on reporting and helping to resolve 
local environmental issues. This involves conducting visual audits, reporting issues to the 
council and removing graffiti. The scheme was initially launched in 2003 but has recently 
been revived to attract more volunteers to become street leaders.  There are currently 
2000 street leaders across the borough.  
 
A local street leader was present to explain how easy it was to become a street leader 
stating the role of a street leader is an important one.  Any concerns relating to graffiti or 
antisocial behaviour are reported to the Council via the website, email or dedicated 
telephone line and resolved within 48 hours.   
 
The Chair thanked the representatives for their attendance and announced that if there 
were any topics which residents felt should be highlighted at community council meetings - 
they should speak to local ward councillors or officers during the break.  
 
 

9. FAIRER FUTURE FOR ALL IN SOUTHWARK  
 

 Councillor Richard Livingstone, Cabinet Member for Finance and Resources presented 
the item on a Fairer Future for All in Southwark.  He outlined the framework of the budget, 
setting out the process and setting out the timescales for consultation and decision. 
 
Councillor Richard Livingstone explained that the Council need to engage with members 
of the community, as local government are expected to receive a 25% cut in funding from 
central Government following the announcement of the Comprehensive Spending Review 
on 20 October 2010.   
 
The purpose of the presentation is to also get the views of residents which could be 
emailed and information concerning this would be available on the Southwark website.   
He said it was important to note the cuts likely to be quite significant in the voluntary 
sector.  However the council would continue to work closely with communities, voluntary 
sector and other services as well as protecting the most vulnerable residents. Cabinet 
members have agreed seven budget principles which will underpin the Council’s next 
budget and its process.   
 
It was noted that further consultation presentations would be given at future community 
council meetings to ensure that this process is transparent and that people’s views are 
taken into consideration. 
 
 

10. MAIN THEME: FUTURE OF ALBION STREET  
 

 Tim Thompson, Project Manager for the Canada Water /Bermondsey Spa Regeneration 
presented this item with PowerPoint slides.  
 
Summary of presentations: 
 
Rotherhithe is an historic part of London where the transformation has been tremendous – 

6



4 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Thursday 7 October 2010 
 

50% of the peninsular was water. 
 
• What happened in the mid 1970s the local docks were not viable? 
 
• The London Docklands  Development Corporation (LDDC) further changed the area. 
 
• The late 1990s provided a new public infrastructure where a lot of businesses have 

transformed. 
 
• Referred to the Canada Water Master plan – the Council decided to consult local 

groups about regenerating the area – making it sustainable.  
 
• Proposal to have a new town centre. 
 
• In 2007 the Council appoints developer Barratts to regenerate the area which formed 

part of the master plan and the creation of a new local cinema, library and new homes. 
 
• The new Canada Water Area Action Plan – consulted widely on this and hopefully 

would be adopted as a new planning policy. 
 
• Referred to the intervention on Albion Street and empty properties in the area which 

are structurally unsound.  
 
• Concluded by showing slides of how Albion Street looks like now and hopes to attract 

people to the area  with job and housing opportunities   
 
Improving local retail environment (ILRE) 
 
It was noted that the officer who was due to present this gave his apologies to the 
meeting.  Richard Harris, Environment & Housing Officer – responsible for the north part of 
the borough outlined that the ILRE is a council funded scheme which invests in physical 
environment improvements to e.g. shop fronts to make it more vibrant.  Further information 
on this presentation would be at the next meeting. 
 
Letting policy 
 
Neil Martindale from the Council’s property division was present to give an update on the 
number of shop units let out in Albion Street – i.e. 15 shop units, 2 units are available to let 
and 1 was on offer. 
 
Cafe Conversation 
 
Pauline Adenwalla, local resident set the scene for the workshops and talked about the 
cafe conversation which took place – involving local residents, businesses, Southwark 
officers and local Councillors discussing the long term prospects of Albion Street.  During 
her presentation a number of proposals were noted they include a new street market, 
improve the pedestrian crossing, reinstate the Tommy Steele factory and improve the foot 
fall. 
 
At this juncture the meeting were allocated into the various workshops (with set themes) 

7



5 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Thursday 7 October 2010 
 

which were relayed back after the break.   
 
 

11. WORK SHOPS - ALBION STREET  
 

 AGREED: 
 
That the write up from the various workshops would be given at the next community 
council meeting.  
 
 
 

12. PUBLIC QUESTION TIME  
 

 There were none. 
 
 

13. RELEASE OF S106 MONIES TO CANADA WATER LIBRARY PROJECT  
 

 AGREED: 
 
That the Community Council recommends to Planning Committee that funds totalling 
£1.75 million of section 106 funding from the legal agreement with British Land Canada 
Quays (BLCQ) (dated 4 May 2007) in respect of the developments at Sites A and B, 
Canada Water intended specifically for library and leisure facilities, be released to part 
fund the delivery the new Canada Water Library. 
 
 

14. LOCAL PARKING AMENDMENTS - ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL  
 

 EXECUTIVE FUNCTION 
 
AGREED: 
 
1. RCC approved the following local parking schemes as set out in the report 
 subject to the outcome of any necessary statutory procedures: 
 

• Sandgate Street (1011Q2004) 
• Murdock Street (1011Q2014) 
• Rotherhithe Street (1011Q2009) 
• Quebec Way (1011Q2030) 
• Timber Pond Road (1011Q2031) 

 
2. Members asked for further clarification on parking issues outside the Youth Hostel 

in Rotherhithe Street giving particular regard to the coach set-down and pick up 
during the day.  It was suggested that enforcement signs be installed directly 
outside the hostel to avoid any obstruction.  

8



6 
 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council - Thursday 7 October 2010 
 

 
 

 That the public be excluded from the meeting for the following items of business on the 
grounds that they involve the likely disclosure of exempt information as defined in 
paragraphs 1 and 2, Access to Information Procedure rules of the Constitution. 
 
 

15. LEA SCHOOL GOVERNOR APPOINTMENTS  
 

 EXECUTIVE FUNCTION 
 
Members considered the school governor nominations report. 
 
 
AGREED: 
 
1. That Mr David Johnson, Miss Hannah Kitchen and Ms Yasmin Miah be appointed as 

School Governors for Albion Primary School. 
 
2. That Mrs Anita Blanchard be appointed as School Governor for Alfred Salter Primary 

School. 
 
3. That Trevor Cunningham be appointed as School Governor for Federation of Eveline 

Lowe and Ilderton Primary Schools. 
 
4. That Miss Clare White be appointed as School Governor for Redriff Primary School. 
 
 
 
 

 The meeting ended at 10.00pm. 
 
 CHAIR:  
 
 
 DATED:  
 
 

  
 
 

9



ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL – 7th OCTOBER 2010 
 
Feedback form workshops held at the Finnish Church in London, 33 Albion Street, London 

SE16 
 
 
Workshop 1 - Public Realm 
 
Public Realm is responsible for the investment in and the maintenance of Southwark’s physical 
environment – controlling parking, footway & carriageway maintenance, tree maintenance, 
grounds maintenance, signage, projects, public lighting, management of abandoned vehicles. 
 
Please discuss, write down and feedback your ideas for the following question: 
 
What projects have you seen or heard about in other areas, which you think might 
encourage people to enjoy the public areas in Albion Street? 
 
§ The Public Realm workshop was all female; they began by comparing areas of Southwark that 

had a vibrant environment. This included Potters Field as a good example (others?). One 
person suggested the amount of events held in the area added liveliness to the space. 

 
§ The group then discussed some positive aspects of the street. They identified the Finnish and 

Norwegian churches, Rotherhithe station, BEC College. 
 
§ They suggested the council could encourage more people to visit these places, by providing 

better and clearer signage. The existing signage is “bitty”. In particular, a graphic map placed 
opposite Rotherhithe station and outside the Norwegian Church, with possibly some attractive 
lighting on the church and an information point manned by volunteers can be a possibility. 

 
§ They maintained that the substandard quality and bad layout around the toilets blocked off the 

entrance to the street, and asked if the toilets could come under the Compulsory Purchase 
Order. The group was informed that this could prove to be difficult as CPO’s had to be in the 
public interest to be granted, and this may not be considered essential. 

 
§ They asked that the council discussed with the Norwegian Church the idea of a market in the 

square and tidying up of the environment to make it more attractive. Officers were asked to 
meet with the Market’s Development Manager to discuss the licensing process. 

 
§ The areas they identified that might be easily cleaned up are the corrugated fencing opposite 

Rotherhithe station, the street side of the Rotherhithe Tunnel wall, and the square in front of 
the Norwegian Church, including tree pruning. 

 
§ Greater access to the shops could be given if the pavements area was widened. 
 
 
Updates:  
 
Highways and lighting - Albion Street is not on the list as it is not high risk, determined from a 
condition survey on all lights in 2009/10. Lights were replaced in 2006 with an updated system 
due to crime issues. Four Lamps on Albion Street are due to be repaired as part of the ongoing 
maintenance. 
 
Signage – Council policy does not allow directional signs to Churches. Signs to Rotherhithe 
Station can be considered, subject to not being on TfL land as this will require a location 
survey. 

Agenda Item 6
10



Workshop 2 - Economics 
 
Please discuss, write down and feedback the agreed points for the following questions. 
 
1) What can the council do to improve local economic conditions to attract inward                          
investment? 
2) What can anyone, other than the council, do to improve and attract inward 
investment? 
3)  What can I do to improve the Albion Street economy? 
 
The workshop mainly focused on the Albion Street Library and its long term usage. 
 
§ Bring people into Albion Street after new library is completed and opened 
 
§ School of SAMBA, BEC and Morley College - ensure that they are fully involved as 

stakeholders and utilising the old library 
 
§ Advertise shops people would like to invest in and remove restrictions and introduce clear 

guidelines 
 
§ Parking restrictions should be applied on an level playing field 
 
§ No more housing developments or dwellings in Albion Street 
 
§ Shops only on one side - no viability  
 
§ Provisions for cafes on the ground floor of old library to be considered to encourage greater 

footfall and usage of facilities. 
 
§ Lighting needs to be upgraded from a 'community safety' point of view 
 
§ Better use of shops - ILRE (improving local retail environment) - with a community feel to 

them 
 
§ Library to remain and turn into theatre - Albion Theatre  
 
§ Focus on the real solutions to a small area - energy and resources  
 
§ Having a market again  
 
 
 
Updates:   
 
Market - a real possibility of providing license for occasional trading (pilot programme). Officers 
are currently speaking to the Norwegian Church and plan to speak to Finnish and Swedish 
Churches to discuss ideas of a Scandinavian themed market. 
  
ILRE - designers and contractors who will be responsible for the works on Albion Street are 
presently finalising the specification of works and gaining final approval of the design elements 
from traders, and will be aiming to start work straight after Christmas. 
 
 
 
 
 

11



Workshop 3 - Density & Development 
 
Please discuss, write down and feedback your ideas for the following question. 
 
If there was to be a development proposal for Albion Street, what type and density should 
the council support? I.e. size of buildings, retail, residential, leisure etc... 
 
§ Living versus vibrancy need to be considered 
 
§ Knit into the local area 
 
§ Bermondsey Street - limited comparison with Albion Street 
 
§ Shops in Albion Street - can they in reality compete with the likes of Tesco? 
 
§ Revive the street market 
 
§ Do not want high rise development 
 
§ Need focal point - community space e.g. cafe 
 
§ Can't find Albion Street, not easily accessible 
 
§ Access to Canada Water interrupted by development 
 
§ What worked before and could they be revived? 
 
§ Future of library - gallery or something linked with the history of the area 
 
§ Area has the feel of a village, this should be encouraged 
 
§ Need greater involvement from local residents 
 
§ Nisa (local shop) is a good example of inward investment 
 
§ Is there capacity in local health provision? 
 
§ Library is an important part of the street 
 
§ What type of shops? - Green grocers, not too many specialist shops. 
 
 
 
Updates:  
 
Library – The library site will be openly marketed in the next few months. Any interested parties 
should contact Fahad Nakendo on 020 7525 5359 (fahad.nakendo@southwark.gov.uk) or 
James Oates on 020 7525 5633 (james.oates@southwark.gov.uk) 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

12



 
Workshop 4 - Links & Accessibility 
 
Please discuss, write down and feedback your ideas for the following question: 
 
How can we make Albion Street more accessible so that it benefits from the investment in 
Canada Water and Rotherhithe Station? 
 
§ The question of accessibility initially focused on the lack of connection between Albion Street 

and the Canada Water development, in particular the tube station. 
 

§ There was a sense that the private developments do not take into account the local 
community. E.g. Will the Barrett’s development have a direct link through to Albion Street? – 
Any improvement to the retail environment on Albion Street would depend on increased 
footfall. 

 
§ On the same theme, it was pointed out that the Pumphouse development entrance is blocked 

off at both ends, prohibiting access to Canada Water Station. The gate for the Pumphouse is 
exclusive and private. Is it possible to create a cut through in the wall of the passageway 
(where the apple tree is!) beside the station? 

 
§ Is a road linking Needleman Street to Albion Street a possibility? The main thrust of this 

discussion was the definite need for an alternative link between Albion Street and Canada 
Water station, for residents of the Canada Estate, who currently have to go a very long way, 
with no signage and poor lighting. The lights in the park are obscured by foliage, and it feels 
very unsafe at certain times of day. Indeed the park is shut at night to deter anti-social 
behaviour.  (There is a rough patch of ground near the bus stop by the roundabout/city 
business centre/Norwegian Church -rear access – Renforth Street?) 

 
§ It is currently easier to use the over-ground as routes are not direct. 
 
§ People who have lived in the area all their lives have been denied access by private 

developments and there is an urgent need to integrate all residents. The external wall is both 
a physical and psychological barrier in this regard. 

 
§ Local residents feel that they are not being consulted or informed about decisions which affect 

them personally, and they are being cut out of the benefits of the investments at Canada 
Water. 

 
 
Updates: 
 
Pumphouse development entrance – There is no part of the fence that adjoins council land, so 
agreement of the Pumphouse Estate owners would be needed to create such an access. 
 
 
What Happens next? 
 
Albion Street Steering Group – Rotherhithe CC will be looking into setting up a steering group to 
focus on these and other issues around Albion Street. Anyone interested should contact Forid 
Ahmed on 0207 525 5540 or forid.ahmed@southwark.gov.uk 
 

13



 
 

1 

  

 
Item No.  
11 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
8 November 2010 

Meeting Name:  
Rotherhithe  
Community Council 

Report title: 
 

Community Councils Highways and Lighting Capital 
Investment 2010-11 

Ward(s) or groups affected: 
 

Those in the Rotherhithe Community Council Area 

From: 
 

Gill Davies, Director Environment and Housing 

 
 
 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
1. To agree the works to be funded from the proposed schemes in the Rotherhithe  

community council area as set out in appendix A. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
 
2. The declining quality of public highway coupled with extreme weather events has led 

to further deterioration – with some non principal, unclassified roads being particularly 
affected.  Given the nature of these roads and the lower level of traffic flows it is 
unlikely that such locations will feature in any major resurfacing programme. Without 
the necessary capital allocation to attend to such locations, complaints of poor road 
surfaces can only be dealt with through the reactive maintenance programme.    

 
3. As part of the approved Highways capital investment programme for 2010 -2011 a 

significant proportion has been devolved to each community council area 
 
4. Each Community Council will receive £100,000 for highways surface improvements 

and £75,000 for Lighting improvements of their choice 
 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION 
 
Engineers Selections  
 
5. As an aid to the selection process relevant engineers have provided a range of 

required works and indicative costs for their implementation.   
 
6. In addition to the resurfacing selections provided it has been agreed and authorised 

that it could appropriate to spend the surfacing money on minor patching and pothole 
repairs should a Community Council wish to do so.  

 
Community Council Selections 
 
7. This money can be spent on any asset renewal or replacement project selected by 

the Community Council with the caveats that it cannot be spent on traffic safety or 
parking schemes, non functional or decorative installations and / or non-essential 
works. 

 
 
 

Agenda Item 11
14



 
 

2 

  

Delivery     
 
8. Once the Community Council has made their selections by the method of their choice 

the Asset Management BU will design and deliver the works as soon as possible.   
 
 
Community Impact Statement 
 
9. There are no specific community impact issues arising from the recommendations. 
 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
Background Papers Held At Contact 
Highways Capital 
Investment Programme 
Decision 29/03/2010 

160 Tooley Street 
PO Box 64529 
2nd Floor, Hub 4 
Southwark Council 
London SE1P 
5LX  
 

Beverley Olamijulo, 
Principal Constitutional 
Officer 
 
020 7525 7234 

 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
 Appendix 1  Rotherhithe Candidate Schemes 
 
 
AUDIT TRAIL 
 
Lead Officer Gill Davies, Director Environment and Housing 
Report Author Des Waters, Head of Public Realm 
Version Final 
Dated 14 September 2010 
Key Decision? No 
CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES 
Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Communities, 
Law & Governance 

No No 

Finance Director No No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional Support Services 8 June 2010 
 

15



1

H
ig

h
w

ay
 C

an
d

id
at

e 
S

ch
em

es
 f

o
r 

C
o

m
m

u
n

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l f

u
n

d
in

g
  2

01
0-

11
 

U
nd

er
 s

pe
nd

 fr
om

 2
00

9-
10

  
£6

0,
13

8 

C
o

u
n

ci
l 

R
o

th
er

h
it

h
e

20
10

 -
11

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
 

£1
00

,0
00

 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 
20

10
 -

11
 

£1
60

,1
38

 

E
xi

st
in

g
 S

it
u

at
io

n
 

C
an

d
id

at
e 

S
ch

em
e 

 
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  
E

xi
st

in
g

 s
it

e 
p

h
o

to
s 

P
ro

p
o

se
d

 W
o

rk
 

E
st

im
at

ed
 

C
o

st
 

L
av

en
d

er
 R

o
ad

 
(S

ur
re

y 
D

oc
ks

 W
ar

d)
 

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

 : 
lo

ca
l s

ub
si

de
nc

e,
  

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

: 
fu

ll 
de

pt
h 

re
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
om

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
, 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f r
oa

d 
m

ar
ki

ng
 

£6
0,

00
0 

R
en

fo
rt

h
 S

tr
ee

t 
 (

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
 W

ar
d)

 

F
o

o
tw

ay
s:

 U
nt

id
y 

co
nd

iti
on

, i
m

po
rt

an
t 

w
al

ki
ng

 r
ou

te
, u

ne
ve

n 
F

oo
tw

ay
 s

ur
fa

ce
, 

ex
is

tin
g 

tr
en

ch
 s

ub
si

de
nc

e 
tr

ip
 h

az
ar

ds
.

F
o

o
tw

ay
s:

 R
ep

av
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
st

an
da

rd
, r

ei
ns

ta
te

 c
ro

ss
 o

ve
rs

, 
£4

0,
00

0 

16



2

G
re

en
 H

u
n

d
re

d
 R

d
 

(L
iv

es
y 

W
ar

d)
 

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

 :S
ub

si
di

ng
 tr

en
ch

 
re

in
st

at
em

en
ts

, l
oc

al
 s

ub
si

de
nc

e,
 re

pe
at

ed
 

pa
tc

hi
ng

 in
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n,
 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
st

rip
pi

ng
, l

on
gi

tu
di

na
l c

ra
ck

in
g 

, 
lo

ca
l t

ra
ns

ve
rs

e 
cr

ac
ki

ng
, p

oo
r c

ha
nn

el
 

al
ig

nm
en

t, 
 

F
o

o
tw

ay
s:

 U
nt

id
y 

co
nd

iti
on

, r
el

at
iv

el
y 

lo
w

 
fo

ot
fa

ll,
 im

po
rt

an
t w

al
ki

ng
 r

ou
te

 

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

: 
F

ul
l d

ep
th

 r
ec

on
st

ru
ct

io
n 

in
 s

om
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, 
ch

an
ne

l r
ep

ro
fil

in
g,

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
ca

lm
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f r

oa
d 

m
ar

ki
ng

 
F

o
o

tw
ay

s:
 R

ep
av

e 
to

 C
ou

nc
il 

st
an

da
rd

, r
ei

ns
ta

te
 c

ro
ss

 
ov

er
s.

£6
0,

00
0 

L
o

w
er

 R
d

 (
O

sp
re

y 
E

st
) 

(R
ot

he
rh

ith
e 

W
ar

d)
 

F
o

o
tw

ay
s:

 U
nt

id
y 

co
nd

iti
on

, i
m

po
rt

an
t 

w
al

ki
ng

 r
ou

te
, t

re
e 

ro
ot

 li
fti

ng
 o

f p
av

in
g,

 u
nt

id
y 

tr
ee

 p
its

.  

F
o

o
tw

ay
s:

 R
ep

av
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
st

an
da

rd
, r

ep
av

e 
to

 d
ep

ar
tu

re
 

fr
om

 s
ta

nd
ar

d,
 im

pr
ov

e 
tr

ee
 p

it,
 r

ei
ns

ta
te

 c
ro

ss
 o

ve
rs

, d
ef

er
 

w
or

k 
du

e 
to

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 s

ite
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
   

  
£1

00
,0

00

S
t 

H
el

en
a 

R
o

ad
 

(R
ot

he
rh

ith
e 

W
ar

d)
 

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

 :S
ub

si
di

ng
 tr

en
ch

 
re

in
st

at
em

en
ts

, l
oc

al
 s

ub
si

de
nc

e,
 re

pe
at

ed
 

pa
tc

hi
ng

 in
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n,
 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
st

rip
pi

ng
, r

ut
tin

g,
 lo

ng
itu

di
na

l 
cr

ac
ki

ng
 , 

lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
ve

rs
e 

cr
ac

ki
ng

, p
oo

r 
ch

an
ne

l a
lig

nm
en

t, 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f p
ot

 h
ol

es
 d

ue
 

to
 la

st
 c

ol
d 

sp
el

l, 
U

K
P

M
S

 c
on

di
tio

n 
ra

tin
g

F
o

o
tw

ay
s:

 U
nt

id
y 

co
nd

iti
on

, r
el

at
iv

el
y 

lo
w

 
fo

ot
fa

ll,
 im

po
rt

an
t w

al
ki

ng
 r

ou
te

, t
re

e 
ro

ot
 

lif
tin

g 
of

 p
av

in
g,

 u
nt

id
y 

tr
ee

 p
its

   

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

: 
R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 e

nt
ire

 le
ng

th
 fu

ll 
de

pt
h 

re
co

ns
tr

uc
tio

n 
in

 s
om

e 
lo

ca
tio

ns
, c

ha
nn

el
 r

ep
ro

fil
in

g,
 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t o

f t
ra

ffi
c 

ca
lm

in
g 

m
ea

su
re

s,
 r

ep
la

ce
m

en
t o

f r
oa

d 
m

ar
ki

ng
 

F
o

o
tw

ay
s:

 R
ep

av
e 

to
 C

ou
nc

il 
st

an
da

rd
, r

ep
av

e 
to

 d
ep

ar
tu

re
 

fr
om

 s
ta

nd
ar

d,
 im

pr
ov

e 
tr

ee
 p

it,
 r

ei
ns

ta
te

 c
ro

ss
 o

ve
rs

, d
ef

er
 

w
or

k 
du

e 
to

 p
os

si
bi

lit
y 

of
 s

ite
 r

ed
ev

el
op

m
en

t  
   

  

£1
00

,0
00

 
 

17



3

B
u

sh
 R

o
ad

 
(R

ot
he

rh
ith

e 
W

ar
d)

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

 :S
ub

si
di

ng
 tr

en
ch

 
re

in
st

at
em

en
ts

, l
oc

al
 s

ub
si

de
nc

e,
 re

pe
at

ed
 

pa
tc

hi
ng

 in
 v

ar
io

us
 s

ta
ge

s 
of

 d
et

er
io

ra
tio

n,
 

ag
gr

eg
at

e 
st

rip
pi

ng
, r

ut
tin

g,
 lo

ng
itu

di
na

l 
cr

ac
ki

ng
 , 

lo
ca

l t
ra

ns
ve

rs
e 

cr
ac

ki
ng

, p
oo

r 
ch

an
ne

l a
lig

nm
en

t, 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f p
ot

 h
ol

es
 d

ue
 

to
 la

st
 c

ol
d 

sp
el

l, 
U

K
P

M
S

 c
on

di
tio

n 
ra

tin
g 

= 
 

C
ar

ri
ag

ew
ay

: 
R

es
ur

fa
ci

ng
 e

nt
ire

 le
ng

th
 o

f  
B

us
 la

ne
, f

ul
l 

de
pt

h 
re

co
ns

tr
uc

tio
n 

in
 s

om
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

, c
ha

nn
el

 r
ep

ro
fil

in
g,

 
re

pl
ac

em
en

t o
f t

ra
ffi

c 
ca

lm
in

g 
m

ea
su

re
s,

 r
ep

la
ce

m
en

t o
f r

oa
d 

m
ar

ki
ng

 

£1
00

,0
00

18



4

S
tr

ee
t 

L
ig

ht
in

g 
C

an
d

id
at

e 
S

ch
em

es
 f

or
 C

om
m

u
n

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l f

u
n

di
n

g 
 2

01
0-

20
11

 
U

nd
er

 s
pe

nd
 fr

om
 2

00
9-

10
  

£3
7,

00
0 

R
o

th
er

h
it

h
e 

20
10

 -
11

 a
llo

ca
tio

n 
 

£7
5,

00
0 

A
va

ila
bl

e 
fo

r 2
01

0 
-1

1 
£1

12
,0

00
 

E
xi

st
in

g
 S

it
u

at
io

n
 

C
an

d
id

at
e 

S
ch

em
e 

  
C

o
n

d
it

io
n

 R
ep

o
rt

  
E

xi
st

in
g

 s
it

e 
p

ho
to

s 
P

ro
p

o
se

d
 W

o
rk

 
E

st
im

at
ed

 
C

o
st

 

A
d

m
ir

al
 P

la
ce

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
S

ur
re

y 
D

oc
ks

) 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£2
,0

00
 

C
lif

to
n

 P
la

ce
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£4
,0

00
 

G
at

ak
er

 S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£4
,0

00
 

S
et

h
 S

tr
ee

t 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£4
,0

00
 

S
u

rr
ey

 C
an

al
 R

o
ad

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 
A

 n
ew

 li
gh

tin
g 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 s

tr
uc

tu
ra

lly
 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

  l
ig

ht
in

g 
co

lu
m

ns
 a

nd
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

 u
p 

to
 

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
£4

,0
00

 

M
id

dl
et

o
n 

D
ri

ve
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£6
,0

00
 

R
u

ss
ia

 D
o

ck
 W

al
k 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

k)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 
A

 n
ew

 li
gh

tin
g 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 s

tr
uc

tu
ra

lly
 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

  l
ig

ht
in

g 
co

lu
m

ns
 a

nd
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

 u
p 

to
 

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 
£6

,0
00

 

S
ta

lh
am

 S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
£6

,0
00

 

19



5

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

C
o

o
kh

am
 C

re
sc

en
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
,0

00
 

F
ar

ro
w

 P
la

ce
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
,0

00
 

H
ar

d
y 

C
lo

se
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
,0

00
 

K
in

b
u

rn
 S

tr
ee

t 
(W

ar
d 

– 
R

ot
he

rh
ith

e)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
,0

00
 

F
o

u
n

d
ry

 C
lo

se
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
,0

00
 

G
u

nw
h

al
e 

C
lo

se
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
,0

00
 

K
en

n
in

g 
S

tr
ee

t 
(W

ar
d 

- 
R

ot
he

rh
ith

e)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
,0

00
 

H
yn

d
m

an
 S

tr
ee

t 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
0,

00
0 

M
id

sh
ip

 C
lo

se
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 
A

 n
ew

 li
gh

tin
g 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 s

tr
uc

tu
ra

lly
 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

  l
ig

ht
in

g 
co

lu
m

ns
 a

nd
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

 u
p 

to
 

£1
0,

00
0 

20



6

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

B
ra

y 
C

re
sc

en
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
0,

00
0 

M
o

o
d

ke
e 

S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
0,

00
0 

W
in

d
ro

se
 C

lo
se

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
R

ot
he

rh
ith

e)
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
0,

00
0 

H
el

lb
ec

k 
C

lo
se

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
2,

00
0 

M
u

rd
o

ck
 S

tr
ee

t 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
2,

00
0 

G
al

le
o

n 
C

lo
se

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
2,

00
0 

D
ev

o
n

sh
ir

e 
G

ro
ve

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
4,

00
0 

A
co

rn
 W

al
k 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
4,

00
0 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
 

21



7

C
ra

n
sw

ic
k 

R
o

ad
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

Li
ve

se
y)

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 
A

 n
ew

 li
gh

tin
g 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 s

tr
uc

tu
ra

lly
 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

  l
ig

ht
in

g 
co

lu
m

ns
 a

nd
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

 u
p 

to
 

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

£1
6,

00
0 

D
ev

o
n

 S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
8,

00
0 

S
yl

va
n

 G
ro

ve
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

Li
ve

se
y)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
8,

00
0 

A
rc

h
an

g
el

 S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

R
ot

he
rh

ith
e)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£1
8,

00
0 

C
an

o
n

 B
ec

k 
R

o
ad

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
R

ot
he

rh
ith

e)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£2
2,

00
0 

R
u

ss
ia

 D
o

ck
 R

o
ad

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
S

ur
re

y 
D

oc
ks

) 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£2
2,

00
0 

R
u

b
y 

Tr
ia

n
g

le
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

Li
ve

se
y)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£2
2,

00
0 

D
el

af
o

rd
 R

o
ad

 
(W

ar
d 

– 
Li

ve
se

y)
 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£2
4,

00
0 

B
ar

n
ar

d
s 

W
h

ar
f 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 
A

 n
ew

 li
gh

tin
g 

sc
he

m
e 

is
 r

eq
ui

re
d 

to
 r

ep
la

ce
 s

tr
uc

tu
ra

lly
 

co
m

pr
om

is
ed

  l
ig

ht
in

g 
co

lu
m

ns
 a

nd
 b

rin
g 

th
e 

ro
ad

 u
p 

to
 

£2
4,

00
0 

22



8

cu
rr

en
t s

ta
nd

ar
ds

 

R
u

b
y 

S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

Li
ve

se
y)

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£2
8,

00
0 

N
el

so
n

 W
al

k 
(W

ar
d 

– 
S

ur
re

y 
D

oc
ks

) 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£3
0,

00
0 

S
an

d
g

at
e 

S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

Li
ve

se
y)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£3
0,

00
0 

B
yw

at
er

 P
la

ce
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£3
2,

00
0 

C
an

ad
a 

S
tr

ee
t 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£3
2,

00
0 

B
ea

ts
o

n
 W

al
k 

(W
ar

d 
– 

S
ur

re
y 

D
oc

ks
) 

50
%

 o
r 

ab
ov

e 
of

 th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

lig
ht

in
g 

st
oc

k 
is

 
st

ru
ct

ur
al

ly
 c

om
pr

om
is

ed
. 

T
o 

fo
llo

w
 if

 s
el

ec
te

d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£5
0,

00
0 

V
er

n
y 

R
o

ad
 

(W
ar

d 
– 

Li
ve

se
y)

 
50

%
 o

r 
ab

ov
e 

of
 th

e 
ex

is
tin

g 
lig

ht
in

g 
st

oc
k 

is
 

st
ru

ct
ur

al
ly

 c
om

pr
om

is
ed

. 
T

o 
fo

llo
w

 if
 s

el
ec

te
d 

A
 n

ew
 li

gh
tin

g 
sc

he
m

e 
is

 r
eq

ui
re

d 
to

 r
ep

la
ce

 s
tr

uc
tu

ra
lly

 
co

m
pr

om
is

ed
  l

ig
ht

in
g 

co
lu

m
ns

 a
nd

 b
rin

g 
th

e 
ro

ad
 u

p 
to

 
cu

rr
en

t s
ta

nd
ar

ds
 

£8
6,

00
0 

23



9

24



  

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council 
 

Public question form: 
 

 
Your name: 
 
 
Your mailing address: 
 
 
 
What is your question or comment? 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Questions/comments received at the meeting will either have a reply at the meeting or follow up at the next 
general meeting to allow officers/councillors to prepare their responses.  
 
Please give to Beverley Olamijulo, Constitutional Officer, Forid Ahmed, Neighbourhood Coordinator or Gill Kelly, 
Community Council Development Officer  
 

 

Agenda Item 12
25



 
 
 

1 

  

 
 
 

 
 
RECOMMENDATION(S) 

 
1. That the Rotherhithe Community Council approves the allocation of £7,270 

community funding. 
 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION  

 

2. The Community Council Fund provides revenue grants of between £100 and 
£1,000 for community projects. Applications are considered by the borough's 
eight community councils, which have £15,260 each, for projects that will benefit 
the community.  Rotherhithe Community Council awarded £7,990 in June 2010 
and Members asked for the remaining £7,270 to be awarded later in the year, to 
allow groups to submit applications for Christmas/winter activities. 

 
KEY ISSUES FOR CONSIDERATION  
 
3. Appendix 2 contains the funding guidelines for the fund.  
 

• The Community Council Fund forms part of Southwark 2016 objectives of  

• Improving life chances  

• A better place for people  

• Delivering quality services. 

 
Community impact statement 

 
4. The allocation of the Rotherhithe Community Council fund will, in the main, affect 

the people living in the Rotherhithe Community Council area. However, in making 
the area a better place to live and improving life chances for local people, the 
Community Fund activities will have an impact on the whole of Southwark.  

 
5. The Rotherhithe Community Council fund aims to increase community participation 

and activity within the area and provide such groups with the support that they 
would have not been able to access otherwise.  

 
 

Item No.  
14. 
 

Classification: 
Open 

Date: 
8 November 2010 

Meeting Name: 
Rotherhithe Community 
Council  

Report title: 
 

Rotherhithe Community Council Fund. 

Ward(s) or groups 
affected: 
 

Livesey, Rotherhithe and Surrey Docks  

From: 
 

Strategic Director of Communities, Law & 
Governance 
 

Agenda Item 13a
26



 
 
 

2 

  

Resource implications 
 
6. The budget for the Rotherhithe Community Council Fund is £15,260 to be 

spent by the 31 March 2011.  
 
 
Legal/Financial implications 
 
7. The Council has power under section 2 of the Local Government Act 2000 (“the 

Act”) to do anything which it calculates is likely to promote or improve the 
economic, social or environmental well being of the area. This power can be 
exercised for benefit of the whole or any part of the council’s area or for the 
benefits of any person resident or present in the area.  

 
8. Section 2(3) of the Act requires the Council to have regard to its Community 

Strategy when determining whether or not to exercise this power. Section 2(4) of 
the Act specifies that this includes a power to give financial assistance to any 
person.  

 
9. The Council has power under the Act to provide funding to voluntary organisations 

but in exercising this power regard must be had to the Council’s sustainable 
community strategy. These grants, from the community fund, are from revenue 
budgets. 

 
10. The Executive in November 2005 agreed for this to be done by the community 

councils.  The money can be granted to community projects ranging from cultural 
celebrations to providing equipment for local sports teams.  

 
REASONS FOR URGENCY 
 
11. In order for funding to be allocated to allow completion of projects in the 

winter/Christmas period. 
 
REASONS FOR LATENESS 
 
12. The report could not be circulated 5 clear working days before the meeting as the 

closing date for applications was after the agenda publication date. 
 
BACKGROUND DOCUMENTS 
 
APPENDICES 
 

No. Title 
Appendix 1 Rotherhithe Community Council Fund 2010– second round 

applications insert  
Appendix 2 Rotherhithe Community Council Fund Information Sheet 2010. 

AUDIT TRAIL 
Lead Officer Darryl Telles, Neighbourhoods Manager 

Report Author Forid Ahmed, Neighbourhood Coordinator 
Version Final 

27



 
 
 

3 

  

Dated 1 November 2010 
Key Decision No 

CONSULTATION WITH OTHER OFFICERS / DIRECTORATES / CABINET  
MEMBER 

Officer Title Comments Sought Comments included 
Strategic Director of Communities, Law 
& Governance  

Yes Yes 

Finance Director No No 
Cabinet Member      No   No 
Date final report sent to Constitutional/Community 
Council/Scrutiny Team 

1 November 2010 

 

28



 
INFORMATION SHEET 

 

 

1 

Rotherhithe 
Community Council Fund   
2010-2011 (second round) 

Southwark 
Logo 
 
R CC logo 

 
Information Sheet                                       www.southwark.gov.uk/communityfund 
 
Your community council has £7,270 to support activities run by local groups. Bids 
for grants of between £100 and £1000 can be made to Rotherhithe community 
council via a very simple application form.  
 
Who can apply? 
The Community Council Fund was set-up for new and emerging groups and small 
organisations to hold one-off events and activities.  Groups are encouraged to work in 
partnership with other groups.  Who can apply: 
 
• Any constituted local group (i.e. that has a business bank account and letter-headed 

paper) or any group/individual that has a sponsor organisation (with bank account & 
letter-headed paper) who can administer the funds on their behalf. 

 
• Any community group that is based in the community council area they wish to bid to, 

and plan to hold their project in that area. (Please see the enclosed community 
council postcode list and map to find out which is your community council). 

 
What kind of things can be funded? 
The Community Council Fund can fund a variety of projects. Examples include: 
• a one off event such as a fun-day or a football tournament 
• a series of workshops/activities involving members of the local community 
• Publicity/merchandise to advertise the event you are doing 
 
What kind of things we will not be funded? 
Anything which is capital funding.  Examples include: 
• building works 
• large playground equipment 
 
How much can groups bid for? 
Local groups can make bids up to £1000 and in some cases a higher bid may be 
considered. Help can be requested with completing application forms and advice sought 
about the types of applications that are likely to get approval (please see overleaf for 
who to contact).  
 
How and when can you bid? 
You can put in a bid by completing an application form and returning it to the contact 
address below. You are advised to return your application form by Friday October 29 
2010.  
 
Who makes the decisions on what gets funded?  
Council officers will assess and make recommendations but locally elected councillors 
will ultimately be responsible for making decisions on which groups get funding.  

29



 
INFORMATION SHEET 

 

 

2 

 
Decisions for applications received by Friday October 29 2010 will be made by 
councillors no later than November 8 2010 and you will be notified of decisions by letter.  
 
It is possible that the decisions will be given out at a special meeting before you are 
notified by letter, but you will be informed of this once you have submitted your 
application. 
 
What type of criteria will be used to judge applications? 
• The project is a revenue project: i.e. it involves the money being spent on an 

activity/event (e.g. fun-day, education day, work-shops) or on certain materials/goods 
that will contribute to a group activity/or revenue project  

• (e.g. play equipment for a nursery, publicity or merchandise for an event) 
• The project is seen to benefit the local community (e.g. a number of local people 

involved/a number of people will benefit from the project in some way) 
• The money must be spent before the end of March 2011 
• The group bidding for the project is based in the community council area it is bidding 

to, and will be carrying-out the project in that area (unless it is a project for an outing 
e.g. to theatre/other place of interest outside of area) 

• The project involves mostly local residents 
• The group agrees to complete a feedback/monitoring form about the project and 

provide evidence of spend, once the project is completed 
 
Please note: 
That groups that are not constituted who would like to apply or individuals with project 
ideas are advised to get in touch with the community council involvement coordinator for 
their area for advice (contact details below). 
 
Please note that priority will be given to: 

• Applications that show a high level of community involvement 
• Projects that demonstrate groups working together 
• New and emerging groups who have not previously received funding from this 

small grants scheme  
•  

 
Groups can submit more than one application form but will only be awarded for one of 
their project ideas (with a maximum award of £1000) from the small grants’ scheme.  
 
For more information please contact: 
Please return the completed application form to: Gill Kelly, Bermondsey & 
Rotherhithe Community Council Development Officer, Community Engagement, 
P.O. Box 64529 London SE1P 5LX 
Phone 020 7525 3690, email gill.kelly@southwark.gov.uk 
Or visit www.southwark.gov.uk/communityfund 
 
You are advised to return your application form by Friday October 29, 2010.  
Decisions will be made by November 8 2010. 
 
All projects must be completed by Thursday March 31 2011. 

30



Organisation

Ward of 
project 
group Name of Activity Nature of Activity

Proposed 
Date of 
Activity Proposed recipients A

m
o
u
n
t 

re
q
u
es
te

d A
m
o
u
n
t 

A
w
ar
d
ed
 

Bede Youth 
Adventure Project

Rotherhithe Bede West End 
Christmas 
Celebrations

To take young people who have never seen a live musical 
show to the West End to see a show of their choosing. Some 
of these young people have never left Bermondsey

Dec-11 Young people from Rotherhithe 
and Bermondsey

£1,000

Bermondsey Artists 
Group

Rotherhithe CGP London 
Community Allotment 
Gardening

Allotment gardening at Café Gallery Project for parents and 
pre school children, with allotment based craft activities - for 
example making Christmas decorations/bird feeders/

Throughout 
November 2010 
to February 
2011

Mainly Rotherhithe families 
(70% at least)

£500

Bermondsey Parent 
and Toddlers Group   
and  Surrey Docks 
Farm

South 
Bermondsey 
and Surrey 
Docks

Love Nature Festival -  
Family Fun Day

A family event for all in the SE1 & SE16 (South Bermondsey 
& Rotherhithe) area using our leftover funds from the sadly 
disbanding Parent & Toddler Group in partnership with Surrey 
Docks Farm,  with emphasis on the environment and nature 
and to introduce Surrey Docks Farm to those that haven’t 
been.   

Saturday 12 
February 2011

For attendees of our own and 
other Parent & Child groups, 
(see application for details). 
80% will be from Rotherhithe  

£1,718

Bonamy/Bramcote 
TRA

Livesey Pensioners' 
Christmas Party and 
Dance

Pensioners' Christmas Party with buffet and entertainment, 
and a Christmas Dance with Fish & Chip supper

10th and 17th 
December 2010

Local pensioners £650

Bonamy/Bramcote 
TRA

Livesey St George's Day St Georges day Event - Publicity Mar-11 60% Rotherhithe local people £350

Brunel Museum Rotherhithe Opening of  Brunel’s 
Measuring Garden

Workshops and planting and party to celebrate the 
completion of a new community garden. The garden also has 
a giant sundial, compass seats and measuring activities for 
visiting groups.

Dec-10 Local people £1,000

Community Youth 
Ltd (CYL)

? CYL Christmas 
Community Fun Day

 ‘CYL Christmas Community Fun Day’ open to all members of 
the local community, but targeted towards young people.  To 
participate in the following activities: Drop in workshops in the 
recording studio  Drop in workshops in the film studio. One to 
one life coaching with a qualified life coach. Drop in 
discussions and debates with peer mentors (for young people 
only),  Music played by DJs Crazy Cousinz and DJ Cheeky 
throughout the day. Receive a goody bag containing CDs and 
other give aways donated by Defenders Ent and other 
sponsors. 

Friday 17th 

December 
from 12pm to 
8pm. 

Between 12pm and 3pm we 
would target workshops 
towards those young people 
classed as NEETs who we 
would like to provide positive 
activities for.  Between 3pm 
and 8pm workshops and 
activities will be targeted to all 
members of the local 
community. 

£995

Rotherhithe CCF Round 2 Applications 2010-11

31



Downside Fisher 
Youth Club

Riverside Graphic Design & 
banner making Class

Making pop up banners to promote the Youth Club and 
develop skills and self confidence

Jan 2011 to 
March 2011

Will benefit youth club 
members and the local 
community. Immediate 
beneficiaries will be the young 
people attending the 
workshops. All live in 
Rotherhithe area

£1,000

Griffin Sport JFC Riverside 3 Football Football Sept 2010 to 
April 2011

Anyone who wants to play 
football in the area

£1,000

Hawkstone Tenants 
& Residents 
association

Rotherhithe Silwood Abbeyfield 
Community Cohesion 
Christmas

A Community Cohesion Multi-faith (or none) Christmas event 
for residents living in the Silwood (Hawkstone), George 
Walter Court and Abbeyfield Area

Dec-10 Senior Citizens (mostly over 
50's), but all ages welcomed, 
from the area specified - 100% 
Rotherhithe

£770

London Bubble 
Theatre Group

Rotherhithe Grandchildren of the 
Blitz Group 
workshops

We would like to run a weekly Intergenerational Drama 
Group, open to all ages 8 and above. After the success of the 
7th September event, we realised we needed a regular 
interactive platform for the young people and the adults 
involved to share and develop the stories of those involved 
and about how the Blitz transformed the area. We therefore 
piloted a new Intergenerational group in September and it has 
been very successful. Unfortunately we do not have the 
funding to run this group and will not be able to run it past 
December 2010. 

January to 
March 2010

Local residents, those 
interested in Rotherhithe history 
and the Blitz

£951

Mayflower T & RA Rotherhithe Christmas Parties - 
OAP and children

2 x Christmas parties, one for pensioners and one for children 
on the estate

27 Nov - 
Children, 4 Dec - 
OAP's

Local residents £500

Pumphouse 
Educational Trust

Surrey Docks Natural Christmas 
Craft Family 
Extravaganza

A programme of 6 after school family workshops (2 hours) for 
local family groups i to create Christmas crafts using natural 
materials such as seed heads, fallen leaves and dead plants 
from the nature reserve and incorporate them with recycled 
materials to create a range of artistic creations that they can 
use at Christmas.

November/Dec
ember 2010

The activities will benefit local 
families with children from a 
range of backgrounds and 
abilities.

£900

Rainbow Arts & 
Crafts

Rotherhithe Coach Outing An outing to a place of interest 40513 Members of Rainbow Arts (over 
60's)

£378

Redriff Primary 
School

SDO Winter Fair A winter fair with lots of fun activities for the community, 
including a bouncy castle, rides, games and food

6th December 
2010

Rotherhithe Residents £1,000

32



Rotherhithe and 
Bermondsey Choral 
Society

Grange Choral performance 
of local music in the 
Rotherhithe Tunnel 
Shaft

Local choir with local member and musical director, 
encourage all local people to take part. To put on series of 
short performances in the last remaining shaft to Rotherhithe 
Tunnel on museum open days. (amazing acoustics) see 
application

Mar-11  local singers plus about 200 
open day visitors

£490

Save Kings Stairs 
Gardens

Rotherhithe Action Group - Kings 
Stairs Gardens

To preserve KSG from development and destruction by 
protesting and galvanising support from the local community 
to sign our petition, and to propose alternative local 
brownfield sites that would serve the needs of Thames 
Waters's new London super sewer project so that KSG is 
removed as a preferred site from their plans

Ongoing The whole Rotherhithe 
Community who use this park 
for recreational purposes, the 
children who use the 
playground, those who enjoy 
the beautiful view of the river.

£1,000

Stroke Club Rotherhithe Christmas party A Christmas party at Time and Talents’s hall , which 
accommodation the group of 20 with their carers and Time 
and Talents Volunteers. We will have the Christmas lunch 
meals brought in from a local restaurant and a music 
entertainer. Many of this group do not have an outside 
network and therefore we would like to be able to give each 
member a small gift and a card at this time. 

15th Dec 2010 All members live in Rotherhithe £685

Surrey Docks Farm Surrey Docks Christmas Fair and 
Donkey Walk

To add more activities to our Christmas Fair and create a 
Donkey Walk to visit other Rotherhithe groups and sites.  
We’ll then use our donkeys to carry our monthly shop back 
from Tesco, Surrey Quays. Very clean, green, safe. And 
excellent marketing for the farm

Christmas Fair 
on Saturday 5 
December. 
Donkey walks 
on the day and 
thereafter. 

Predominantly a wide range of 
Rotherhithe people from all 
backgrounds

£2,500

Tai Chi Rotherhithe Rotherhithe Tai Chi Mornings for 
the 50+

To learn the art of T'ai-Chi Ch'uan - a meditation for the health 
of mind, body and spirit.

fortnightly from 
1 Nov to March 
2011

Local people over 50 yrs £1,000

Time and Talents Rotherhithe Educational Activities 
for Discover

Discover works with young people who may find formal 
education difficult, or are achieving below the national 
average, offering one to one support for young people facing 
personal issues affecting their education. To date it has 
concentrated on13 to 15 age group, but since summer has 
broadened to cover 8-12yrs. Discover would like to offer a 
wider range of workshops designed to increase skills 
development. (Full details on application form)

Up to end 
March 2011

Young (8-16yrs) people in 
Rotherhithe

£100

Tustin Community 
Association

Livesey New Year 
Celebration

A New Years Celebration event for the community Jan-11 Benefit the Tustin Community £1,000

33



What's On 
Rotherhithe Group

Rotherhithe 1. Production of map 
and distribution         
2. Promotion of 
activities of listed 
organisations

Reprint of very popular local map Ongoing Residents of, visitors to, and 
workers in  Rotherhithe

£900

XLP Livesey Silwood Young Men's 
Group

Using XLP's XL-R8 bus, we run a young men's group with 
time for bonding, using computer games, DJ equipment, 
recording studio and a meal, which culminates in a discussion 
about issues of becoming a man. Plus a trip in Feb., planned 
by the young people

every Tuesday 
evening 6.30 to 
8pm 4th Jan to 
29th March

The group is for 11 to 18 age 
males on the Silwood Estate 
and in surrounding area

£1,000

34



MEMBERS & EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/11 

COUNCIL:  ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
NOTE: Original held by Community Councils Unit; amendments to Beverley Olamijulo 
(tel: 020 7525 7234) 
 

OPEN COPIES OPEN COPIES 

 
Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair)                               1 
Councillor Wilma Nelson (vice Chair)                 1 
Councillor Columba Blango                                1 
Councillor Michael Situ                                       1 
Councillor Richard Livingstone                           1 
Councillor David Hubber                   1  
Councillor Paul Noblet                                        1 
Councillor Catherine McDonald                          1 
Councillor Lisa Rajan                                          1 
 
 
Constitutional Support Officer 10 
 
 
MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT 
Simon Hughes, M.P. 1 
Harriet Harman, M.P. 1 
 
                                             
LIBRARIES 3 
Local Studies Library 1 
 
PRESS: 
Southwark News                                                 1        
South London Press                                           1                  
 
EXTERNAL   
Community Action Southwark                            1 
Hannibal House, 8th floor 
Elephant & Castle, London SE1 6TE 
                                                 
 

 
Valerie Shawcross                                         1 
GLA Building 
City Hall 
London SE17 2AA 
 
 
Chief Superintendent / 
Borough Commander 
Southwark Police Station 
323 Borough High Street 
London SE1 1JL                                            2 
 
 
Geoffrey Banister                                          1 
LBS Audit Manager 
1st Floor, Tooley Street  
 
 
TRADE UNIONS 
UNISON Office Southwark                           1 
Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX                             1 
Mike Young TGWU/ACTS                            1   
Tony O’Brien, UCATT                                   1 
 
NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSING OFFICE 
Rotherhithe Area Housing Office 
153-159 Abbeyfield Road SE16 2LS            1 
 
 
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION                         117 
 
Dated: 3 November 2010 

 

35



MEMBERS & EXTERNAL DISTRIBUTION LIST MUNICIPAL YEAR 2010/11 

COUNCIL:  ROTHERHITHE COMMUNITY COUNCIL 
NOTE: Original held by Community Councils Unit; amendments to Beverley Olamijulo 
(tel: 020 7525 7234) 
 

OPEN COPIES OPEN COPIES 

 
Councillor Jeff Hook (Chair)                               1 
Councillor Wilma Nelson (vice Chair)                 1 
Councillor Columba Blango                                1 
Councillor Michael Situ                                       1 
Councillor Richard Livingstone                           1 
Councillor David Hubber                   1  
Councillor Paul Noblet                                        1 
Councillor Catherine McDonald                          1 
Councillor Lisa Rajan                                          1 
 
 
Constitutional Support Officer 90 
 
 
MEMBERS OF PARLIAMENT 
Simon Hughes, M.P. 1 
Harriet Harman, M.P. 1 
 
                                             
LIBRARIES 3 
Local Studies Library 1 
 
PRESS: 
Southwark News                                                 1        
South London Press                                           1                  
 
EXTERNAL   
Community Action Southwark                            1 
Hannibal House, 8th floor 
Elephant & Castle, London SE1 6TE 
                                                 
 

 
Valerie Shawcross                                         1 
GLA Building 
City Hall 
London SE17 2AA 
 
 
Chief Superintendent / 
Borough Commander 
Southwark Police Station 
323 Borough High Street 
London SE1 1JL                                            2 
 
 
Geoffrey Banister                                          1 
LBS Audit Manager 
1st Floor, Tooley Street  
 
 
TRADE UNIONS 
UNISON Office Southwark                           1 
Roy Fielding, GMB/APEX                             1 
Mike Young TGWU/ACTS                            1   
Tony O’Brien, UCATT                                   1 
 
NEIGHBOURHOOD HOUSING OFFICE 
Rotherhithe Area Housing Office 
153-159 Abbeyfield Road SE16 2LS            1 
 
 
TOTAL DISTRIBUTION                         117 
 
Dated: 29 October 2010 

 


	Agenda
	
	Languages - Rotherhithe Community Council

	5 Minutes
	6 Matters raised at previous meeting
	11 Community Councils Highways and Lighting Capital Investment 2010-11
	Community Council proposals for Rotherhithe

	12 Public Question Time
	13a Rotherhithe Community Council Fund
	Information sheet - Rotherhithe Community Council Fund
	List of Community Council Fund applications 2010
	Distribution list

	

